
 
 

     Operations Memorandum 

 
To: New Haven Board of Education Finance and Operations Committee 
From: Joseph Barbarotta    
Date: 6/8/2021     
Re: Professional Services for Bid Documents for Martinez swimming pool dehumidification 
system         
 

Contractor Name: Innovative Engineering Services LLC 

Contractor Address: 33 North Plains Industrial Road Wallingford, Ct.06492 

Is the contractor a Minority or Women Owned Small Business? No 

Renewal or Award of Contract/Agreement? Agreement 

Total Amount of Contract/Agreement and the Hourly or Service Rate: Not to Exceed 
$27,000.00 

Contract or Agreement #:  
 
 

Funding Source & Account #:  3C20-2082-58101 $27,000.00 
 
Key Questions: (Please have someone ready to discuss the details of each question during the 
Finance & Operations meeting or this proposal might not be advanced for consideration by the 
full Board of Education): 
 
What specific service will the contractor provide?  
 SERVICES INCLUDED  
1. We will prepare demolition plans showing the approximate layout of the existing structural, 
mechanical, and electrical systems.  

2. We will attend progress meetings with the design professionals and owner's representative. We will 
be limiting the quantity of meetings to two (2). Progress meetings, which are beyond the state quantity, 
will be charged at a rate of $150 per hour per person.  

3. Project specifications will be denoted on the drawings. Book specifications are excluded from this 
proposal.  

4. We will expect AutoCAD compatible drawing files, from your office, for the work within our Scope of 
Work  

5. We will provide contract documents, which will be completed and ready for pricing, final bidding or 
construction. These documents will illustrate the following systems:  

A. STRUCTURAL SYSTEMS  



A. New dehumidification rooftop unit composed of new air handling equipment, distribution piping, 
distribution ductwork, and all associated controls. Note: it is anticipated that the existing electrical feeds 
and hot water piping to unit will be re-used.  

B. Plans and specifications for the installation of a new distribution ductwork to support the new 
dehumidification unit.  

C. Reuse the existing temperature control system to support the HVAC equipment.  

C. ELECTRICAL SYSTEM  

1) We will prepare plans and specifications for the installation of the following Electrical system(s):  

A. Electrical to support new mechanical equipment.  

6. The following bid period and construction administration services shall be provided by our firm:  

A. Answer project scope or contract design questions via email, phone or fax during the bid period.  

B. Review shop drawings, equipment submittals and any possible contract substitutions the contractors 
may propose in order to maintain the integrity and quality of the clients engineered system.  

C. Prepare a punch list inspection to confirm that the contractors have completed their work.  

D. Attend a pre-bid conference and walk through with the contractors.  

E. Perform site visits to observe the progress of construction. We will be limiting the quantity of visits to 
two (2). Site visits, which are beyond the stated quantity, will be charged at a $150.00 per hour per 
person. 
A. We will verify the existing roof curb and support system is adequate to accommodate the new 
packages dehumidification unit.  

B. MECHANICAL HVAC SYSTEMS  

1) We will prepare plans and specifications for the installation of the following Mechanical Heating, 
Ventilation and Air Conditioning system(s):  
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1. How was the contractor selected? Quotes? RFP? Sealed Bid or Sole Source? Please 
describe the selection process including other sources considered and the rationale for 
selecting this method of selection: This contractor was chosen as they have performed 
typical services for the school district at reasonable pricing in the past. 

 
2. If this is a renewal with a current vendor, has the vendor’s performance been 

satisfactory under the existing contract or agreement? This is a new agreement as this 
firm has performed similar services for the NHPS system. 
 

3. If this Contract/Agreement is a Renewal has cost increased? If yes, by how much? N/A 
This agreement pricing is consistent with past agreements with this firm. 
 
 
 



4. If this Contractor is New has cost for service increased from previous years? If yes, by 
how much/? N/A 

 

 

5. Is this a service existing staff could provide? Why or why not? No existing staff is not 
trained and does not possess the knowledge, equipment and materials necessary to perform 
this work. 
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M e m o r a n d u m  

 

The following is an approximate cost breakdown as per IES feasibility study OPTION No. 2 which 
is based on replacing the existing dehumidification unit in-kind which was represented as the 
following: 

Replace with AAON model No. RN-040-3-A-EP-19-FJL. Unit tonnage can remain at the lower 
limit of 40-tons, this will allow electrical breaker and feeds to be reused. The Energy wheel 
rating based on Cooling/ Dehumidification was sized for 80.51 MBH of total capacity. Hot water 
pipe sizing for re-heat can remain and re-connected to new hot water coil. Heating/ 
Dehumidification has 590.73 MBH of total capacity. CFM conditions for both summer and 
winter conditions are based on a mixed air of 17,485 CFM, a return air of 11,985 CFM and 
outside air of 5,500 CFM.  Air change rates would be 4-ACH which meets the minimum ASHRAE 
requirements.   

Preliminary selection of new unit was selected to fit on the existing roof curb. Note: structural 
engineer will need to confirm associated weight distribution. Modifications to the ductwork will 
need to occur such as: all new distribution ductwork to be installed. Supply grills will need to be 
angled downward toward windows and return grills will need to be lowered. External static 
pressure was increased to 3.0” WC to allot a better velocity of airflow distribution and prevent 
air stratification which we believe is currently happening. Associated rigging of this unit could 
be picked and staged easily based on review of current site conditions 

 

 

 

 

 

Company: New Haven Board of Education  From: IES 

 

Attention: Mr. John Barbarotta Project No.: 20030 

 

Address: 657 Ferry Street  Re: Martinez School Pool 
Dehumidification Unit         
Project estimate  

 

Tel. No.: --- Date: May 13, 2020 

 

cc: IES File  Time: Via e-mail  
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PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION ESTIMATE  

 

• DEMO DUCTWORK       $22,000.00 

• INSTALL AND FABRICATE DUCTWORK   $74,500.00 

• DEHUMIDIFICATION UNIT & FACTORY CONTROLS   $180,000.00 

• ELECTRICAL       $12,000.00 

• CONTROLS (TIE-IN TO EXISITNG)     $18,000.00 

• RIGGING AND PREPARATION     $9,500.00 

• MISC        $28,000.00 

• ENGINEERING        $24,500.00 

PROPOSED TOTAL COST       $368,500.00 
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May 11, 2020 
 
John Barbarotta, AFB 
New Haven Board of Education 
Facilities Operations 
657 Ferry Street 
New Haven, CT 06613 

 
RE: Martinez School Pool Dehumidification Replacement 100 James St, New Haven, CT 06513 

 
  
 
Dear John: 

“SCOPE OF SERVICES” 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with this proposal for our professional engineering services.  
We understand that the scope of this project is as follows.  This is a replacement for the pool 
dehumidification system (AHU-1) at Martinez school located at 100 James Street, New Haven. The pool 
area located on the Main level of the building. The pool house is approximately 4,100 S.F. and located on 
the southwest side of the building. 

The following items shall be considered as the Scope of Services provided by our firm. 

SERVICES INCLUDED 

1. We will prepare demolition plans showing the approximate layout of the existing structural, 
mechanical, and electrical systems. 

2. We will attend progress meetings with the design professionals and owner's representative. We will 
be limiting the quantity of meetings to two (2).  Progress meetings, which are beyond the state 
quantity, will be charged at a rate of $150 per hour per person. 

3. Project specifications will be denoted on the drawings.  Book specifications are excluded from this 
proposal. 

4. We will expect AutoCAD compatible drawing files, from your office, for the work within our Scope of 
Work  

5. We will provide contract documents, which will be completed and ready for pricing, final bidding or 
construction.  These documents will illustrate the following systems: 

A. STRUCTURAL SYSTEMS 

A. We will verify the existing roof curb and support system is adequate to accommodate 
the new packages dehumidification unit.  

B. MECHANICAL HVAC SYSTEMS 

1) We will prepare plans and specifications for the installation of the following Mechanical 
Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning system(s): 
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A. New dehumidification rooftop unit composed of new air handling equipment, 
distribution piping, distribution ductwork, and all associated controls. Note: it is 
anticipated that the existing electrical feeds and hot water piping to unit will be re-
used.  

B. Plans and specifications for the installation of a new distribution ductwork to support 
the new dehumidification unit.  

C. Reuse the existing temperature control system to support the HVAC equipment. 

C. ELECTRICAL SYSTEM 

1) We will prepare plans and specifications for the installation of the following Electrical 
system(s): 

A. Electrical to support new mechanical equipment. 

6. The following bid period and construction administration services shall be provided by our firm: 

A. Answer project scope or contract design questions via email, phone or fax during the bid 
period. 

B. Review shop drawings, equipment submittals and any possible contract substitutions the 
contractors may propose in order to maintain the integrity and quality of the clients 
engineered system. 

C. Prepare a punch list inspection to confirm that the contractors have completed their work. 

D. Attend a pre-bid conference and walk through with the contractors. 

E. Perform site visits to observe the progress of construction.  We will be limiting the quantity 
of visits to two (2).  Site visits, which are beyond the stated quantity, will be charged at a 
rate of $150 per hour per person. 

SERVICES EXCLUDED 

It is our understanding that engineering services and contract documents for the following systems will 
not be required or provided by our firm.  Although the following items are excluded from this contract 
and the scope of services, they may be added if so desired. 

1. We will not be providing engineering services or contract documents for Fire Protection, Plumbing,  
structural, site/civil or environmental engineering or architectural services for the project. 

2. We will not be providing a formal MEP/FP systems narrative or an order of magnitude construction 
cost estimate for our work. 

3. We will not be providing multiple sets of review documents for coordination, milestone reviews, 
inspection agency reviews, submission set reviews, etc.  We will not be providing the final printing of 
the bid documents.  Only internal in-house progress printing is included within our fees.  Any 
additional sets of documents will be considered to be a reimbursable expense. 

4. We will not be providing engineering services for multiple-phased construction documents. 

5. We will not be providing any central services to our project area.  It is our understanding that the 
existing facility has adequate capacity to support the new equipment. It is not our intent to provide 
design services for major modifications to the buildings infrastructure to support the renovated space. 
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PROJECT COMPLETION SCHEDULE 

We should be able to meet any reasonable schedule you may have at this time.  The actual completion 
dates will be established based on our firm receipt of the accepted proposal.  

FEES FOR OUR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

To complete the Professional Engineering Services required for the project by our firm, we propose the 
following lump sum fees: 

Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing and Fire Protection: 

2. Construction Documents     $20,500.00 

3. Construction Administration     $4,000.00 

 Total Lump Sum Fee (100%)     $24,500.00 

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

In addition to the services listed above, reimbursable expenses incurred by IES, LLC for this project shall 
be added to the monthly invoice at 1.15 times actual cost and are in addition to our fees for engineering 
services.  Items, which are considered reimbursable expenses, are listed within the “Standard Terms and 
Conditions”. 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Finally, in addition to this Scope of Services our “Standard Terms and Conditions” which your firm has on 
record, details specific contractual items.  Please acknowledge your acceptance of this proposal entitled 
“Scope of Services” and of our “Standard Terms and Conditions” by signing below.  The documents 
entitled “Scope of Services” and “Standard Terms and Conditions” are considered to be the Agreement 
between the parties.  Please return the original, executed documents to our office.  Receipt of the 
executed contract documents shall also constitute our notice to proceed on the Project. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with this proposal for our engineering services. 

Sincerely, 

Innovative Engineering Services, LLC 

            

Thomas E. A. Massaro LEED AP, BCxP   Date 
Member 
Innovative Engineering Services, LLC 

            

Client       Date 
 



Requisition Martinez bid docs. IES (1)

Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Quarter 1ST

PURCHASE ORDER REQUISITION
City of New Haven Agency Date Prepared Fund Agency Program Location
Board  of Education New Haven Public Schools

Important Use separate requisition for Organization 5/29/2020 3C202082-58101
each commodity class, Do Not requisition DEPT. OF PLANT & MAINT.
items involving more than one account DELIVER TO: Requested By: Approved by:
Classification on each form. 

DESCRIPTION Unit Est.
(Type, size, color, weight shape quality packaging, etc of Quantity Unit Date 

Be specific. Give complete information to avoid mistakes) Measure Cost Needed

lump sum 1 $24,500.00
bid 

documents

lump sum 1 $2,500.00 Contingency

   

 

Total $27,000.00 asap

Edit By: *** All Space Below this line reserved for purchApproved for purchase by:

(Buyer)

NEW HAVEN CT 06519
Joseph Barbarotta Carl Carangelo

FACILITIES DEPT./WAREHOUSE
654 FERRY STREET

Professional Engineering Services to prepare bid documents for the replacement of the entire 
HVAC Dehumidification System at John S. Martinez School.  100 James Street, New Haven.

I.E.S. Innovative Engineering Soluctions, LLC.
33 North Plains Industrial Road
Wallingford, Ct, 06492
Tom Massaro
Telephone- 203-467-4370

This project to be funded by account number 3C202082-58101



Requisition Martinez bid docs. IES (1)

Fiscal Year 2000-2001 Quarter 1st

Purchase Requisition Building Aqua#30969680
City of New Haven Agency Date Prepared Fund/Agency Program Location Object
Board  of Education New Haven Public Schools

Important Use separate requisition for Organization Req. No.
each commodity class, Do Not requisition

items involving more than one account Delivery Point Requested By: Approved by:
Classification on each form. 

DESCRIPTION Unit Est.
(Type, size, color, weight shape quality packaging, etc of Quantity Unit Date 

Be specific. Give complete information to avoid mistakes) Measure Cost Needed
-               

ea $0.00
-               

ea 0.00
ea 0.00
ea 0.00

-               
-               
-               
-               
-               
-               
-               
-               

Suggested -               
Vendor (Name & Address) -               
Computers Plus -               
1227 Burnside Ave. -               
East Hartford CT. 06108
Attn: Gina Malapanis $0.00

Edit By: *** All Space Below this line reserved for purchasing*** Approved for purchase by:

(Buyer)
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